
  Cabinet 
 Agenda 

 
 
Date: 
Thursday 12 June 2025 at 5.00 pm 
 
Venue: 
Council Chamber, Dunedin House, Columbia Drive, Thornaby, TS17 6BJ 
 
 
Cllr Lisa Evans (Leader) 
 
Cllr Pauline Beall, Cllr Clare Besford, Cllr Nigel Cooke, Cllr Richard Eglington, Cllr Paul 
Rowling and Cllr Norma Stephenson OBE 
 
 

Agenda 
 

1.  Evacuation Procedure (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

2.  Apologies for Absence  
 

3.  Declarations of Interest  
 

4.  Minutes (Pages 11 - 16) 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 May 2025. 
 
 Cllr Clare Besford - Cabinet Member for Children and Young People 
 

5.  Bright Minds Big Futures (Pages 17 - 18) 
 

6.  A Children’s Safeguarding Hub for Stockton-on-Tees (Pages 19 - 24) 
 
 Cllr Richard Eglington - Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Housing 
 

7.  Accelerating affordable housing delivery ('A quality home for all')(Pages 25 - 30) 
 
Cllr Lisa Evans – Leader of the Council 
 

8.  Minutes of Various Bodies (Pages 31 - 36) 
 

Page 1



  Cabinet 
 Agenda 

 
 
Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting 
 
With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the 
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting 
and/or have access to the agenda papers. 
 
Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting, including the opportunities available   for 
any member of the public to speak at the meeting; or for details of access to the meeting for disabled people, 
please. 
 
Contact:  Democratic Services Officer, Peter Bell on email peter.bell@stockton.gov.uk 

Page 2



  Key – Declarable interests are :- 
  

●  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI’s) 
●  Other Registerable Interests (ORI’s) 
●  Non Registerable Interests (NRI’s) 
 

Members – Declaration of Interest Guidance 

 

 
 

Page 3



   
 
 

Table 1 - Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Subject Description 

Employment,  
office, trade,  
profession or  
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain 

Sponsorship 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) 
made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by 
him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election 
expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts 

Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a 
firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person 
is a director* or  
 
a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council 
—  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; 
and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and 
property 

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.  
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licences 
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer. 

Corporate 
tenancies 

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—  
(a) the landlord is the council; and  
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

Securities 

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—     
(a) that body (to the councillor’s   knowledge) has a place of business or   land in the 
area of the council; and     
(b) either—     
(i) the total nominal value of the   securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or     
(ii)      if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment 
scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 
 
 

Page 4



   
 
 

 

Table 2 – Other Registerable Interest 

You must register as an Other Registrable Interest: 
 
a) any unpaid directorships 
 
b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management and to which 
you are nominated or appointed by your authority  
 
c) any body  
 
(i) exercising functions of a public nature  
 
(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  
 
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political 
party or trade union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

Council Chamber, Dunedin House 
Evacuation Procedure & Housekeeping 
 
Entry 
 
Entry to the Council Chamber is via the South Entrance, indicated on the map below.  
 

 
 

In the event of an emergency alarm activation, everyone should immediately start to leave 
their workspace by the nearest available signed Exit route.  
 
The emergency exits are located via the doors on either side of the raised seating area at 
the front of the Council Chamber.  
 
Fires, explosions, and bomb threats are among the occurrences that may require the 
emergency evacuation of Dunedin House. Continuous sounding and flashing of the Fire 
Alarm is the signal to evacuate the building or upon instruction from a Fire Warden or a 
Manager.  
 
The Emergency Evacuation Assembly Point is in the overflow car park located across the 
road from Dunedin House.  
 
The allocated assembly point for the Council Chamber is: D2 
 
Map of the Emergency Evacuation Assembly Point - the overflow car park: 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



 

 
All occupants must respond to the alarm signal by immediately initiating the evacuation 
procedure. 
 
When the Alarm sounds: 
 

1. stop all activities immediately. Even if you believe it is a false alarm or practice 
drill, you MUST follow procedures to evacuate the building fully. 
 

2. follow directional EXIT signs to evacuate via the nearest safe exit in a calm and 
orderly manner. 
 

o do not stop to collect your belongings 
o close all doors as you leave 

 
3. steer clear of hazards. If evacuation becomes difficult via a chosen route because 

of smoke, flames or a blockage, re-enter the Chamber (if safe to do so). Continue 
the evacuation via the nearest safe exit route. 
 

4. proceed to the Evacuation Assembly Point. Move away from the building. Once 
you have exited the building, proceed to the main Evacuation Assembly 
Point immediately - located in the East Overflow Car Park. 
 

o do not assemble directly outside the building or on any main roadway, to 
ensure access for Emergency Services. 
 

Page 8



 

5. await further instructions. 
 

o do not re-enter the building under any circumstances without an “all 
clear” which should only be given by the Incident Control Officer/Chief Fire 
Warden, Fire Warden or Manager. 

o do not leave the area without permission. 
o ensure all colleagues and visitors are accounted for. Notify a Fire Warden 

or Manager immediately if you have any concerns 
 
Toilets 
 
Toilets are located immediately outside the Council Chamber, accessed via the door at 
the back of the Chamber.  
 
Water Cooler 
 
A water cooler is available at the rear of the Council Chamber. 
 
Microphones 
 
During the meeting, members of the Committee, and officers in attendance, will have 
access to a microphone. Please use the microphones, when invited to speak by the Chair, 
to ensure you can be heard by the Committee and those in attendance at the meeting. 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Cabinet 
 
A meeting of Cabinet was held on Thursday 15th May 2025. 
 
Present: Cllr Lisa Evans (Leader), Cllr Pauline Beall (Cabinet Member), 

Cllr Clare Besford (Cabinet Member), Cllr Nigel Cooke (Cabinet 
Member), Cllr Richard Eglington (Cabinet Member), Cllr Paul 
Rowling (Cabinet Member) and Cllr Norma Stephenson OBE 
(Cabinet Member) 

 
Officers: Mike Greene, Julie Butcher, Tracey Carter, Garry Cummings, 

Kirsty Grundy, Majella McCarthy, Ged Morton (CS), Iain 
Robinson and Mandie Rowlands 

 
Also in attendance: Cllr Marc Besford, Cllr Lynn Hall and Cllr Sylvia Walmsley 
 
Apologies: None.  
 
 

CAB/9/25 Evacuation Procedure 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and the evacuation procedure was 
noted. 
 

CAB/10/25 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no interests declared. 
 

CAB/11/25 Minutes 
 
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 17 April 2025. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 17 April 2025 be approved. 
 

CAB/12/25 Minutes of Various Bodies 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution or previous practice the minutes of the 
meeting of the bodies indicated below were submitted to Cabinet for consideration:- 
 
TSAB – 11 December 2024 
TSAB – 12 March 2025 
 
RESOLVED that the above minutes be received. 
 

CAB/13/25 Billingham Town Centre and Sports Hub Update 
 
Consideration was given to a report setting out positive updates on projects to improve 
Billingham as part of the Council’s continued commitment to invest in the town and 
bring about transformational change. The report provided an update on the Levelling 
Up Fund (Round Three) alongside progress on the development of a Sports Hub on 
the former Billingham Campus site to create a sustainable high quality grassroots 
sports facilities for local clubs and residents to use. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Following receipt of a funding agreement, the final elements of legal agreements with 
Evolve could now be progressed. The current agreement would see the Council 
acquire West Precinct, the former library site and part of the adjacent Queensway 
South block, at the point of vacant possession.   These acquisitions would facilitate 
demolition, site clearance and relocation of tenants to support future redevelopment. 
Planning permission for the demolition and reconfiguration of the affected areas had 
been secured, and work was underway to explore the provision of a residential 
community in the heart of the town centre alongside new retail space,  improvements 
to public realm and car parking  
 
Work was also underway exploring the feasibility of the reuse of the Wynyard House 
building for a public sector hub, incorporating a range of services as part of a body of 
work, funded through One Public Estate.   
 
Cabinet considered the approval of an additional £2 million allocation from Tees Valley 
Combined Authority (TVCA) funds to the Billingham Sports Hub project. This would 
bring the Council's TVCA commitment to £6 million, in support of an expanded 
scheme that included two artificial grass pitches, a 7v7 pitch, an athletics enclosure, 
accessible active track, pavilion, and community facilities. These improvements 
followed extensive public consultation and engagement with sports bodies and local 
stakeholders. 
 
Cabinet considered entering into funding agreements with TVCA and the Football 
Foundation, with delegated authority granted to the relevant Directors, in consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Housing, to finalise the terms. Further 
delegated authority was sought to approve the contract award and any necessary 
variations to support project delivery. 
 
This approval would allow the business case assessment to be undertaken by TVCA 
and provided confirmation to funding partners of the Council’s commitment to support 
project costs in advance of costs being finalised in July 2025. 
 
Cabinet discussed conferring the completed Sports Hub to the National Football Trust 
(NFT), via a 30-year lease arrangement that ensured no revenue implications for the 
Council. The NFT would manage and maintain the facility through Leisure United, with 
strategic guidance provided, locally, by a Local Advisory Group. Construction was 
expected to commence in Autumn 2025 and complete in Autumn 2026. 
 
RESOLVED that:- 
 
1. Cabinet note the update on Billingham Town Centre, including progress on 
funding arrangements and legal agreements required to enable redevelopment, and 
further note the continuing assessment of options to secure the town centre’s long-
term regeneration. 
 
2. The allocation of £2 million to the Billingham Sports Hub project from funding 
provided by the Tees Valley Combined Authority, be approved, in support of the aims 
of the refreshed 10-Year Investment Plan approved in July 2022, and to help promote 
economic growth in Billingham. 
 
3. The Council enters into funding agreements with the Football Foundation and 
the Tees Valley Combined Authority in relation to the Billingham Sports Hub project; 
and that authority be delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Inclusive Growth, 

Page 12



the Director of Corporate Services, and the Director of Finance, Transformation and 
Performance, exercising that authority jointly and in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration and Housing, to agree the final terms of those funding 
agreements. 
 
4. Authority be delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Inclusive Growth, 
the Director of Corporate Services, and the Director of Finance, Transformation and 
Performance, exercising that authority jointly and in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration and Housing, to: 
a. approve the specific contract award decision for delivery of the Billingham Sports 
Hub;  
b. and agree any subsequent contract variations necessary to support the effective 
delivery of the project. 
 

CAB/14/25 Scrutiny Review of Holidays are Fun 
 
Consideration was given to a report from the Children and Young People Select 
Committee following a scrutiny review of the Holidays are Fun programme. 
 
The Holiday Activities and Food (HAF) programme was funded by the Department for 
Education and the Holiday Enrichment Programme (HEP) was funded by Public 
Health. The Stockton-on-Tees HAF team held a competition to rename the 
programme and selected “Holidays Are Fun” to remove some of the stigma some 
parents associated with holiday hunger. 
 
HAF was offered free to school aged children from reception to year 11 who were in 
receipt of benefit related free school meals. 
 
The two programmes covered the following holiday periods: 
 
• Holiday Activities and Food – DfE funded – covered Easter, Summer and 
Christmas and the provision had to be 4 hours a day for at least 4 days a week 
 
• Holiday Enrichment Programme – Public Health funded – covered May, 
October and February and the provision had to be two hours a day for at least four 
days 
 
The overall aim of the review was to understand if HAF was inclusive of and attended 
by those families who most needed it and the impact that the programme has had on 
family health and social and economic wellbeing. 
 
The Select Committee report concluded that the HAF programme provided much 
needed support to children and families in need over holiday periods and feedback 
illustrated that the programme was highly valued. Work was continuing to ensure that 
the programme was meeting the needs of children in most need and it was 
encouraging that auto-enrolment of free school meals was helping to identify eligible 
children. Providers had a good working relationship with the Council and children 
benefited from taking part in a wide variety of activities, many of which they would 
otherwise be unable to due to cost. In addition, the programme offered the 
opportunities for lifelong learning and had been a vehicle for providing support outside 
of holiday periods. 
 

Page 13



The Select Committee acknowledged the contribution from Public Health which 
enabled the programme to also operate during half term periods. The Select 
Committee were also mindful that ongoing Government funding was uncertain and 
consideration needed to be given making the programme sustainable in the longer 
term, for example, through the introduction of some paid for places. 
 
RESOLVED that:- 
 
1. The Council continues to develop and promote the HAF programme to the 
residents of the Borough to ensure that the programme is meeting the needs of 
children in most need. 
 
2. The offer for SEND and secondary school children is further developed and 
promotional materials refreshed to target these children. 
 
3. Communications with town and parish councils are reviewed and strengthened. 
 
4. The Council works with providers to increase up take in all wards and decrease 
non-attendance. 
 
5. Consideration be given to how paid for places could be introduced to help make 
the programme sustainable. 
 
6. The Council works with schools to remove the barriers to them being primary 
delivery partners (for example, through the employment of a key holder to take 
responsibility for the premises, and staff choosing to take extra hours to support the 
programme on their premises). 
 
7. The in-house booking system is replaced with a bespoke fit for purpose 
booking system with functionality to capture appropriate demographic information, 
including which school the child attends and that this information is used to identify 
gaps in provision, analyse take up and inform future targeting of promotional activities. 
 
8. One grant application form be introduced for providers for all holiday periods. 
 
9. Opportunities to link the programme to the curriculum and promote lifelong 
learning for all the family are enhanced. 
 
10. A summer school programme is developed with the Careers Team, to create 
opportunities for young people aged 13 plus to participate in paid employment (within 
the law). 
 
11. Opportunities are created for post 16 young people to take an active leadership 
role in the programme, linking in with local colleges who are delivering T levels 
thereby making the programme more sustainable. 
 
12. The Council works with providers to extend whole family support outside of the 
school holidays. 
 
13. The Council considers how best to collect information around SEND children 
attending activities to ensure that providers are properly prepared, and children’s 
needs are met when attending sessions. 
 

Page 14



14. A mapping exercise is undertaken to ensure that provision is represented 
across all wards across the whole borough, especially those rural areas. 
 
15. The potential to explore utilising in house community transport during the 
school holidays be explored. 
 
16. The possibility of creating a ‘free holiday meals’ element of the programme in 
line with the DfE guidance, utilising our own facilities that are in place during term time 
be explored along with the opportunity of creating our own ‘student’ kitchen to provide 
the meals. 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 

1 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

 
DATE 12 JUNE 2025 

 
REPORT OF SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT TEAM 

 
 
 
CABINET INFORMATION ITEM  
 
Children & Young People - Lead Cabinet Member – Councillor Clare Besford 
 
 
BRIGHT MINDS BIG FUTURES - ANNUAL UPDATE (2024/2025) 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Bright Minds Big Future (BMBF) is a youth-led movement working together with the Council 
to make the Borough a great place to grow up.  This report (and the accompanying 
presentation) provides Cabinet with an update on annual BMBF activity. 
 
The presentation accompanying this report is delivered by representatives of the BMBF 
team. 
 
REASON FOR PRODUCING THIS REPORT 
 
To highlight the value of the work/activity undertaken by BMBF in addressing the priorities of 
young people in our borough. 
 
DETAIL 
 
1. BMBF welcome the opportunity to present their progress and achievements for 2024/25.  

The report also looks ahead and identifies future projects and opportunities. 
 
2. Cabinet is asked to note that the two key themes BMBF are focussing on for 2024/2026 

are Health and Wellbeing and Community Safety which came out of the consultation with 
over 6,000 young people during the Mark Your Mark Campaign.     
 

3. As you will hear from the presentation, excellent progress has made in the last 12 
months. Some notable examples include:  

 

- They recruited 20 young people to be SBC Correspondents at SIRF. 
 

- Delivery of the ‘Second Chance to Dance Event’ providing over prom 30 dresses and 
suits to young people (to enable young people who may otherwise have struggled to 
attend their Prom). 
 

- Social action work including making up and distributing over 60 free goodie bags to 
families through the ‘Kit Out the Borough’ campaign. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

http://sbcintranet/ourstruct/LD/demoservices/128771/128776


 

2 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

4. In addition to the above achievements, BMBF members have also been contributing to a 
range of projects and initiatives including: 

 

• Environmental work through the Youth Climate Coalition. 
 

• Heath & wellbeing initiatives. 
 

• Building links with Council services such as the Leaving Care Team along with 
other partners including Youth United Stockton Alliance (YUSA), which is a 
collective of key partners who have come together to form an alliance to support 
the sustainability of high-quality open access youth provision across Stockton-on-
Tees. 

 
5. Over the last 6 months, a recruitment campaign has been underway to increase BMBF 

membership. The recruitment drive also continues to ensure that BMBF is representative 
of our young people across the borough.  
 

6. Cabinet is also asked to note that the Chair of BMBF, Ethan Gatenby is the Member of 
Youth Parliament (elected through the Make Your Mark Campaign).  
 
2025/2026 
 

7. Looking ahead, Health & Wellbeing and Community Safety campaigns will be a key 
focus for BMBF. BMBF members will do this through project groups and task & finish 
style groups. This will enable our young people to choose to work on projects that they 
have a keen interest in. There will also be a continuing focus on recruiting new members 
to ensure BMBF remains representative of our young people across the borough. 
 

 
Name of Contact Officer:  Sarah Robinson 
Post Title:    Community Engagement Team Manager 
Telephone No.   01642 528167 
Email Address:   sarah.robinson@stockton.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

 
12 JUNE 2025 

 
REPORT OF SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT TEAM 

 
 

KEY DECISION 
 
 
Children and Young People - Lead Cabinet Member – Councillor Clare Besford 
 
A Children’s Safeguarding Hub for Stockton-on-Tees 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Children's Hub is the first point of contact for anyone who has a concern about the safety or 
wellbeing of a child or young person who lives in Stockton-on-Tees. The Children's Hub is 
delivered in partnership with, and managed by, Hartlepool Borough Council.  
  
This report asks members to agree to the disaggregation of the Children's multi-agency hub, and 
to bringing services in-house within Stockton-on-Tees. This will ensure that the Council continues 
to deliver its commitment to the Powering Our Futures Mission by improving service response to 
communities, and forms part of our work programme surrounding the Early Intervention and 
Prevention portfolio.  
 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)/DECISION(S) 
 
The Families First nationally mandated reforms for children’s services and the strategic direction of 
both Hartlepool Borough Council and Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council means the current 
approach is not consistent with the future direction of children’s services for both Authorities.  As a 
result, both Authorities are seeking to disaggregate the Children’s Hub.  
  
This means that each Authority will develop its own front door to services that will have a stronger 
focus on Early Help for families at the point of access and have a stronger focus on reviewing activity 
and adapting services and finance accordingly. 
  
It will give Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council the opportunity to develop its services in partnership 
with residents who are supported by Children’s Services and partner agencies who support children 
young people and families. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. To approve the disaggregation of the Children's Hub from Hartlepool and for the front door 
to services for children and young people and their families to be brought in-house and 
directly delivered by Stockton-on-Tees Children's Services, alongside partner organisations. 

2. To agree to receive an update on future development as part of the wider Children’s Services 
reforms including recommendation on the date in which delegation of the function will occur.  

 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

http://sbcintranet/ourstruct/LD/demoservices/128771/128776


 

1 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
DETAIL 
 
The Children's Hub 
The Children's Hub (CHub) serves as the first point of contact for anyone concerned about the safety 
or wellbeing of a child or young person in Stockton-on-Tees. Since 2016 the CHub has been 
managed in partnership with Hartlepool Borough Council. The multi-agency front door includes 
Hartlepool and Stockton local authorities, Cleveland Police, Tees, Esk and Wear Valley Trust, a 
Local Authority Designated Officer, and representatives from 0-19 services delivered by Harrogate 
District Foundation Trust. 
 
The operational context of the CHub has evolved significantly since its inception. The service has 
experienced a substantial increase in demand, with Stockton referrals surpassing national and 
regional averages. Economic pressures, the cost-of-living crisis, and the aftermath of COVID-19 
have also contributed to the growing complexity of needs of people referred to the hub. 
 
Separating from the integrated front door to an in-house offer aligns more closely with national 
reforms and the strategic direction of the Council. This transition supports the national policy direction 
to transform children's social care by improving outcomes, keeping families together, and enhancing 
localised service delivery. It ensures that the CHub can better reflect local needs, partnership 
arrangements, and Stockton-on-Tees specific strategies for reform.  
 
  
National Policy Direction for Children's Social Care 

The national policy aims to transform children's social care by improving outcomes, keeping families 
together, enhancing information sharing, and fostering partnership and multi-agency collaboration. 
Key policy documents outlining the framework for change include: 

 

• Working Together to Safeguard Children (DFE 2023) 

• Children's Social Care: National Framework (DFE 2024) 

• Families First Partnership programme (DFE 2025) 

• Children's Wellbeing and Schools Bill (Government Bill 2025) 

 

In March 2025 the government issued guidance to support the implementation of these reforms. This 
guidance encompasses a wide range of changes affecting children's services, from early help to 
safeguarding, tailored to the needs of local communities. Consequently, the future operation of the 
CHub must align with local needs, partnership arrangements, and Stockton-on-Tees specific reform 
strategies. 

  

Stockton's Powering Our Futures Programme 

In alignment with national reforms, the Council’s Powering Our Futures (POF) programme has 
prioritised Early Intervention and Prevention, Partnerships (Team Stockton), Data, Digital, 
Technology, and Communities. 

 

In April 2024, a cabinet report included a Project Initiation Document for Early Intervention and 
Prevention (EIP), the EIP programme is focussed on embedding prevention and early intervention 
across the Local Authority, improving outcomes and reducing the need for statutory services. 
Bringing the children’s front door back into Stockton is a fundamental element of the Early 
Intervention and Prevention (EIP) mission and the broader Children’s Social Care Reforms. This 
approach aligns with the overarching vision to support families at the earliest opportunity, addressing 
challenges proactively to reduce the need for statutory interventions. 

  

ANTICIPATED BENEFIT 

This is an opportunity to reflect on the current delivery model for how children and their families 
access services, aiming to improve outcomes for children, young people, and families in Stockton-
on-Tees. A Stockton-on-Tees CHub will: 

Page 20



 

2 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

• Support the wider transformation of children's social care as mandated by national guidance 
and outlined in the children's transformation programme. 

• Provide SBC senior leaders with the oversight and accountability needed to design and 
manage services that respond to local needs and systems. 

• Enhance direct links with partners, fostering wider engagement and relationship-building, 
which will build confidence in our collective response and contribute to improved demand 
management and decision-making. 

• Better utilise resources within the broader children's early help system. 

• Strengthen connections to the wider corporate approach to Powering Our Futures and 
Transformation. 

• Enable real-time updates on data and intelligence, improving performance and outcomes 
management, and facilitating ongoing service improvements. 

 
Engagement with Partners 
Extensive discussions with leaders of Children’s Services at Hartlepool Borough Council has 
highlighted that, in the context of national reforms, the current arrangements for the CHub are not 
fully aligned with Hartlepool’s nor Stockton-on-Tees' strategic direction. While the CHub has been 
an integral part of the Children’s System North of Tees, the evolving operational circumstances 
suggest that a separation of the joint arrangements is necessary. This change will allow both 
Authorities to better align with their respective strategic goals and the broader national reforms. 
 
Partners delivering services from the CHub have engaged in early discussions regarding the future 
of the North of Tees CHub arrangements. Partners have also been engaged in discussions which 
encompassed future partnership visions for Stockton, aligning with national reforms. 
 
Disaggregation Process and Future Arrangements 
There will be an extensive process to disaggregate from the CHub, including process reviews, audits, 
demand and data analysis of the current service. This will inform future arrangements, identify 
staffing needs, and determine the CHub's location, which will be considered by the Asset 
Management group. Additionally, any potential transfer of staff will be carefully managed to ensure 
continuity and alignment with the new operational model. 
 
Future models will be co-designed and developed with partners, the workforce and children and 
families themselves in the context of the wider reforms. There will be consultation and engagement 
exercises and an in-depth communication and engagement plan to ensure a seamless transition. 
 
The estimated start date for the new arrangements will be by 1 April 2026, further updates and 
recommendations will be provided to Cabinet once the more detailed design work has been 
completed. 
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
At this stage there will be no change to operations and therefore a Community Impact Assessment 
has not been undertaken. A full Equality Poverty Impact Assessment (EPIA) will be completed to 
ensure the future model meets the needs of all our communities. 
  
 
CORPORATE PARENTING IMPLICATIONS 
     
Whilst the Chub is intended to support all children who may be at risk of harm, the decision to bring 
this service in-house supports the Council in delivering its corporate parenting responsibilities. A 
more integrated and locally managed approach will strengthen the Council’s ability to identify and 
respond rapidly to safeguarding concerns for the children in our care and care experienced young 
people. Improved coordination across local services will help ensure that the needs of our most 
vulnerable children are prioritised, reinforcing the Council’s commitment to its role as a corporate 
parent within the wider safeguarding system. 

Page 21



 

3 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The anticipated 2025/2026 cost for the Hartlepool CHub is £902,000 (plus pay award once agreed). 
As we develop the Stockton-on-Tees proposal for the CHub, the associated financial implications 
will be detailed in a future report to Cabinet. A local offer will enable us to have greater oversight and 
control over the financial budget requirements of the service.  
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The Local Authority has a statutory duty to deliver safeguarding arrangements for the children in 
their area including the requirements for the provision of a multi-agency front door: 
 

• Children Act 1989  

• Children Act 2004  

• Children and Social Work Act 2017 

• Working Together to Safeguard Children 2023 
 

In 2016, Hartlepool became the lead authority for Stockton’s front door arrangements with 
appropriate delegation of function (pursuant to Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, 
Regulation 6 of the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) 
Regulations 2012 and Section 9EA of the Local Government Act 2000. 
 
 
The implications associated with decision are set out within the risk-assessment section of this 
report. 
 
RISK ASSESSMENT  
 

1. Organisational Risks 
• Change Management: The transition to an in-house CHub may face resistance from 

staff accustomed to the current model, principles of TUPE might apply, redundancy 
liabilities and/or recruitment might be required as well as requirements for physical 
space. Mitigation: Implement comprehensive change management strategies, 
including training and support workforce and asset and facilities planning. 

• Operational Disruption: The disaggregation process could disrupt service delivery 
and OFSTED implications will need to be considered. Mitigation: Develop a detailed 
transition plan with clear timelines and contingency measures including planning and 
considering OFSTED requirements throughout planning. 

2. Reputational Risks 
• Public Perception: Changes in service delivery might be perceived negatively by the 

public. Mitigation: Communicate transparently with stakeholders and the community 
about the benefits and reasons for the change. 

• Partner Relationships: The separation from Hartlepool Borough Council could strain 
relationships with existing partners. Mitigation: Maintain open lines of communication 
and involve partners in the transition process. 

3. Financial Risks 
• Cost of Transition: The disaggregation process may incur additional costs. 

Mitigation: Conduct a thorough financial analysis and secure necessary funding 
before proceeding. 

• Resource Allocation: Ensuring adequate resources for the new in-house model 
could be challenging. Mitigation: Plan and budget carefully, prioritising essential 
services and staffing needs. 

4. Service User Risks 

Page 22



 

4 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

• Service Continuity: There is a risk of service disruption affecting children and 
families. Mitigation: Ensure a seamless transition with minimal impact on service 
users by maintaining robust interim arrangements. 

• Quality of Service: The quality of service might be compromised during the 
transition. Mitigation: Monitor service quality closely and address any issues promptly. 

5. Political Risks 
• Policy Alignment: The changes must align with national and local policies. 

Mitigation: Regularly review and adjust plans to ensure compliance with policy 
directives. 

• Stakeholder Support: Gaining and maintaining political support for the changes is 
crucial. Mitigation: Engage with political stakeholders early and often to secure their 
backing. 

 
 
WARDS AFFECTED AND CONSULTATION WITH WARD/COUNCILLORS  
The CHub is a service available for all children and families who need additional support within the 
Borough and is therefore a Borough wide offer. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 
 
 
Name of Contact Officer: Majella McCarthy 
Post Title: Director of Children’s Services 
Telephone No. 01642 527050 
Email Address: majella.mccarthy@stockton.gov.uk 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 
12 JUNE 2025 
REPORT OF SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT TEAM 

 
 

CABINET DECISION  
 
 
Lead Cabinet Member – Regeneration and Housing – Cllr Richard Eglington 
 
 
Accelerating affordable housing delivery (‘A quality home for all’) 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
A previous report was presented to Cabinet (12.9.2024) which outlined the Governments ambition 
to increase the delivery of quality affordable and social housing and to bring forward investment to 
help deliver “the biggest increase in affordable housing building in a generation”, whilst also 
acknowledging the role affordable housing has in supporting economic growth and as a key 
enabler for local leader to manage local housing pressures.  The September 2024 Cabinet report 
also highlighted that the Council, like most local authorities is experiencing increased demand for 
affordable housing at a time of limited supply and this is impacting on our ability to prevent 
homelessness and support vulnerable adults and care leavers to secure independent 
accommodation.  Cabinet subsequently agreed to support an option appraisal which would 
consider the potential opportunities available to the Council to accelerate affordable housing 
delivery in the borough. This was accompanied by a scrutiny review which was reported to Cabinet 
in April 2025.  This report details the outcome of this appraisal and seeks approval for next steps. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) / DECISION(S) 
 
Both the Stockton-on-Tees Plan and the Powering Our Future programme affirm the Councils 
commitment to driving economic growth to support community prosperity and well-being.  The 
delivery of good quality, affordable housing in well-connected neighbourhoods is integral to 
this.  Increasing the delivery of affordable housing (both in terms of type and tenure ‘a quality home 
for all’) will not only support the Government housing ambitions it will also enable the Council to 
address the boroughs’ local housing need (current and projected) whilst also  addressing some of 
the budget pressures faced across Adult and Children’s services, when appropriate independent 
accommodation is not readily available.  
  
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet is asked to: 
 
1. Support the outcome of the accelerating affordable housing option appraisal, specifically the 

Hybrid Delivery Model (as detailed in paragraph 11). 
 
2. Approve ‘in principle’ the initial phase of sites outlined within paragraph 9 and 10 for delivery of 

affordable housing. 
 

3. Approve the use of S106 commuted sum monies (as detailed in paragraph 16/17) to deliver 
urgently needed affordable housing (generally smaller self-contained accommodation units). 

 
4. Subject to approval of recommendation 3, delegate approval to the Director of Regeneration and 

Inclusive Growth in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Regeneration to 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

approve the preferred direct purchase model to secure additional affordable homes (as detailed 
in paragraph 16/17).  

 
DETAIL 
 
Affordable housing – our current challenges 
 
5. Whilst the Council retained a small number of dwellings (predominately park and cemetery 

lodges) post stock transfer, in essence SBC are a ‘non-stock’ holding local authority.  To 
address our housing needs the council relies on access to affordable Registered Provider (RP) 
properties through Nomination Agreements (with properties then advertised through our on-line 
portal Tees Valley Home Finder) and by increasing the supply of affordable housing in the 
borough by working with RP’s and private developers in our ‘enabling role’ i.e. influencing a RP 
who may have developable land in the borough to build homes that meet our local housing 
needs and by securing additional affordable housing units on sites developed by private house 
builders through Section 106 Agreements.  Whilst the number of new affordable homes 
delivered in the borough in 2024/25 had increased when compared to previous years, these 
units (plus those secured via Nomination Agreements) have not kept pace with the boroughs 
increasing housing need/demand, especially for smaller one bed properties. 
 

6. Looking ahead, faced with constraints such as limited land supply, competing investment 
needs experienced by RP’s (i.e. to invest in their existing stock) and the financial viability 
challenges of securing affordable housing on private house builder development sites it is 
difficult to see how this position will improve looking forward. 
 
Key headlines: 

 
- The total number of new affordable homes delivered in 2024/25 = 279 (69% rented homes / 

31% affordable homeownership).   
o Of the 2024/25 new build affordable units there were no 1-bedroom properties. 
o The number new build affordable units delivered in the previous 4 financial years 

averaged 102 units per annum. 
 

- At the end of 2024/25, 2960 households had an active Tees Valley Home Finder housing 
register) account. 

o An increase of 15% on the previous year. 
o 50% of applicants have a 1-bedroom housing need. 
 

- The total number of properties advertised (on Tees Valley HomeFinder) during 2024/25 
was 678. 

o Of these only 14% (95 properties) were general needs 1 bed or studio units.  
o Of the Band 1 (homeless priority cases) requiring accommodation at the end of 

2024/25, 49.5% had a 1-bedroom housing need. 
 

7. In summary this headline data highlights that despite the role taken by the Council to 
encourage the provision of new affordable housing in the borough, it is not sufficient to address 
the boroughs housing needs, and this is particularly evident in the lack of new build 1 bed 
properties.  A pipeline of 1-bedroom self-contained units (where the occupier has access to 
separate living, bedroom, bathing/wc and kitchen facilities) is critical to support care leavers, 
vulnerable adults and homeless households to move through to living independent.  Without 
access to sufficient affordable housing the council will inevitably face increasing budget 
pressures across these key service areas. 

 
The role of affordable housing (rented and affordable home ownership) – ‘a quality home for all’ 
 
8. Whilst the provision of affordable housing is vital to addressing the boroughs housing needs, it 

also plays a pivotal role in supporting the council deliver its’ wider economic and regeneration 

Page 26



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

ambitions and in improving the boroughs health and inequality disparities.  Not only will new 
build, affordable housing bring significant inward investment into the borough it will be a key 
contributor to the Councils wider residential-led regeneration ambitions (the Central Stockton 
and North Thornaby Blueprints, Billingham town centre and the Tees Valley Care and Health 
Innovation Zone). In addition,  a mixed tenure affordable housing offer (shared ownership and 
rent to buy) will support in attracting an economically active population back into our revitalised 
town centres. Recent examples of this include Thirteen Housing Group’s affordable 
homeownership offer at North Shore and the inclusion of affordable homeownership units in The 
Sycamores developments, where, in both instances demand outstripped supply. 

 
9. Good quality affordable housing in well-connected communities (close to work, education and 

local services) impacts positively on our resident's health and well-being and helps to address 
the boroughs health and poverty inequalities.  Our poorest households are often those living in 
poor quality housing who will be spending more than 40% of their household income on housing 
costs (whilst also living in fuel poverty).  Quality, affordable, rented housing is not only financially 
‘affordable’, but also energy efficient, reducing a household's expenditure on heating costs, 
supporting better health outcomes, and will provide facilities that are modern and accessible for 
a range of households. 

 
Accelerating Affordable Housing Option Appraisal 
   
10. A scrutiny review (undertaken by Place Select Committee) has recently concluded, which 

explored the challenges faced by the council in addressing the boroughs housing need.  Place 
Select Committee also identified that the demand for affordable housing far exceeds demand, 
and that the trajectory of future new build affordable housing will not address the boroughs 
housing needs (both the numbers and type of housing required).  Select Committee also 
considered the optional appraisal work and recommended to Cabinet in its final report 
(presented to Cabinet in April 2025) that the outcomes of the affordable housing option appraisal 
be supported.  
 

11. An extensive range of potential options to accelerate affordable housing delivery were 
considered.  Following an initial assessment each option was then ‘tested’ through a preliminary 
market engagement (PME) exercise.  Through this process, feedback on potential delivery 
options (i.e. interest from a potential partner / risks / financial requirements / deliverability etc) 
was secured from a range or organisations including Registered Providers, large housebuilders, 
smaller SME developers and SME contractors, special needs housing providers and investor 
developers.  The outcome of this exercise highlighted that to secure the Councils affordable 
housing ambitions there was no one size fits all option, rather we should pursue a Hybrid 
Delivery Model i.e. as each potential development site comes forward that it is considered 
against 3 delivery options: 

 
(i) Enabling: The Council would  dispose of a site and secure the required housing through 

its enabling functions.  In this example whilst the Council would not fund the development 
of the site, nor take ownership of the units post development, however we would 
strengthen our enabling approach to ensure our specific needs are meet (in terms of 
determining the specification, type and tenure of units developed). 

 
(ii) Direct Delivery: The Council would directly intervene in the market, developing out its 

own housing stock with the desired quality, housing type, specification and tenure.  In this 
instance the Council would fund the development of the site and take ownership of the 
units of development. The direct delivery model would be via Local Housing Company 
and/or Limited Housing Revenue Account (HRA*) model.  

 
(*currently the threshold at which councils must set up a separate financial management 
account for recording expenditure and income of running their own housing stock and 
closely related services/facilities - known as the HRA - is 200 units. However, there have 
been recent consultation meetings with non-stock holding LA’s by Government to 

Page 27



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

understand their appetite for development and the potential of uplifting the HRA stock 
limit).   

 
(iii) Partnership structure: The Council would enter into a partnership or collaboration 

agreement to deliver the required mix of housing.  The Council would share the financial 
risk of developing the site(s) with an experienced development partner.  A partnership 
structure could involve a single partner or several partners (which may include RP’s, 
private sector partners, build-to-rent companies, institutional investors. This could be 
undertaken with the involvement of Tees valley Combined Authority and Homes England.  

 
12. Cabinet are asked to approve the principle of the Hybrid Delivery Model.  As each site comes 

forward for delivery (regardless of specification, size and tenure) a detailed business case will be 
developed and considered against each of the options detailed above.  Following this exercise a 
further report would then be presented back to Cabinet seeking approval for the preferred 
delivery option (and detailing the business case for delivery). 

 
Affordable housing sites (initial phase) 
 
13. The provision of a mixed tenure affordable housing offer (which will provide ‘a quality home for 

all’) will be considered as an integral part of the Councils regeneration ambitions across Central 
Stockton, North Thornaby, Billingham Town Centre and the Care and Health Innovation Zone).  
However potential sites will also start to come forward through the ongoing work to rationalise 
council building/assets (as referenced in paragraph 15).  Given our current housing needs and 
the limited additional units projected to come forward via third parties in the immediate future, it 
is imperative that we move forward with the Hybrid Delivery Model as quickly as possible.  On 
this basis Cabinet are asked to approve ‘in principle’ an initial phase of smaller sites for the 
purpose of affordable housing delivery these are: 

 
(a) Raleigh Road (vacant potential in-fill site) 
(b) Londonderry Road (vacant potential in-fill site) 
(c) Stirling House (once vacant) 
(d) Parkside House (once vacant) 
(e) Thornaby Baths (once vacant/following the opening of the Thornaby Pavilion & Pool) 

 
14. It is estimated that the release of the above sites for affordable units would deliver an initial 

phase of  between 67-114 new homes.  Subject to Cabinet approval, work will commence to 
explore the quantum of the affordable housing that can be delivered on each site (in terms of 
specification, type, tenure and density), site feasibility work and engagement with potential 
partners.  This will inform which of the Hybrid Delivery Models is best placed to successfully 
bring the site forward.  
  

15. The principle of using council land for the delivery of housing is set out in the Strategic Asset 
Management Plan which was agreed by Cabinet in December 2024 (decision record  
CAB77/24). The Strategic Asset Management Plan sets out the decision making framework for 
all vacant council assets and establishes housing as a priority consideration. Not all sites will 
be suitable for housing and there are competing priorities for the development of land for 
economic, community or council use. As noted in paragraph 13  the acceleration of the delivery 
of housing is a key objective of the Council’s wider regeneration ambitions and the delivery of 
blueprints for North Thornaby, Central Stockton and Billingham. The Council will continue to 
promote residentially driven town centre regeneration using council land, working with public 
sector partners and with private sector developers to ensure that growth across the borough 
delivers mixed tenure, good quality housing which meets the needs of our residents. This 
includes increasing the number of affordable homes delivered but also needs to consider 
affordability for people across a wide range of income brackets (delivering a ‘A quality home for 
all’). 

 
 

Page 28



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
Commuted sum monies 
 
16. As part of the planning process, the council as Local Planning Authority (LPA) negotiates for the 

delivery of affordable housing (20% on site) as part of any new build private house builder  
scheme of more than 10 dwellings. However, there are limited occasions when this is not a 
viable option and on these occasions the LPA accepts a S106 commuted sum, in lieu of on-site 
delivery.  Such monies are paid to the Council on a phased basis and are then ring-fenced to 
support alternative affordable housing delivery anywhere in the borough.  We are currently in 
receipt of S106 monies which are time limited, and given our current housing challenges are 
seeking Cabinet approval to these ring-fenced monies to support: 

 
a) As an immediate priority to use these monies to facilitate the acquisition of properties from 

the open market (potentially a mix of both resale and new build units) to specifically address 
the shortfall in single person accommodation (which will directly support the budget 
pressures across Adult and Children’s services).    

 
b) To fund feasibility works on sites referenced in paragraph 14.  

 
c) Where a financial case has been demonstrated, bridge a funding gap on a private sector 

and/or Registered Provider development if it can be evidenced that this is the only means 
available to deliver affordable housing to the specification, type and tenure required by the 
Council.  
 

17. Given the current urgency to secure access to smaller units (and the time restraints in delivering 
new build housing), preliminary engagement has commenced to determine which of the hybrid 
delivery models would be the most viable to deliver a direct purchase option in terms of 
enhancing numbers and pace of delivery (i.e. could S106 monies be stretched by partnering or 
through grant funding).  Subject to approval of the use of commuted sums as detailed in 
paragraph 15, Cabinet is asked to delegate approval to the Director of Regeneration & Inclusive 
Growth in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Regeneration to approve the 
preferred direct purchase model once the ongoing appraisal and business case is complete.  

 
Conclusion and next steps 
 
18. Work undertaken by Place Select Committee and the Affordable Housing Option Appraisal has 

identified that the market is not at this time responding to address the boroughs housing needs 
(in terms of the number, specification, type and tenure of affordable housing units being 
delivered).  Given the councils landownership and economic & regeneration ambitions there is 
an opportunity as outlined within the body of the report to step into this space and ensure the 
delivery of a pipeline of affordable units (type, specification and tenure) which directly addresses 
our housing need, which is not reliant on a third party.  The delivery of affordable units would 
also make a significant contribution to the Councils residential and town centre regeneration 
ambitions and our annual housing planning target. 
 

19. In addition to the next steps detailed within the report, we are also forging relationship with both 
Homes England and the Tees Valley Combined Authority to ensure we are best placed for future 
funding as/when announcements are made. 

 
EQUALITY AND POVERTY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
20. An Equality and Poverty Impact Assessment (EPIA) has been completed to ensure that the 

Council is following its legal duty to consider equality and diversity during the decision-making 
process.  The conclusion of the EPIA is that the proposed Hybrid Delivery model will have a 
positive impact on those who are affected by poverty and those who have experience of care. 
The assessment has determined that no specific group or protected characteristic will be 
negatively impacted by the proposal. 

Page 29



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
CORPORATE PARENTING IMPLICATIONS 
 
21. As detailed within the body of the report, the provision of additional affordable 1-bedroom self-

contained units will directly support young people in the care of the Council, who are ready to 
transition into appropriate, independent living accommodation and affirms the Councils 
Corporate Parent commitment to provide the best possible care and safeguarding for the child 
who are looked after by us. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
22. The use of S106 commuted sums is detailed within the body of the report (paragraph 15/16).  

The agreement to hold sites Parkside and Stirling House for the provision of affordable housing 
will result in higher ‘holding costs’ than originally anticipated (i.e. for the period the property 
becomes vacant to the time new affordable housing units are delivered/occupied).  The 
provision of these costs will be considered within a future MTFP report. 
 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
23. Subject to Cabinet approval of the report recommendations, legal advice will be sought on 

each affordable housing delivery project to ensure each is compliant with the Council’s 
requirements (governance / procurement /financial etc.). 

 
RISK ASSESSMENT   
 
19. A project risk register will be prepared for each of the affordable housing delivery projects and 

will be managed within the existing risk management systems and daily routine activities. 
 
WARDS AFFECTED AND CONSULTATION WITH WARD/COUNCILLORS  
 
20. As noted within the body of the report Place Select Committee has recently undertaken a 

review of affordable housing.   
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
 
Name of Contact Officer: Jane Edmends 
Post Title:   Assistant Director Housing & A Fairer Stockton-on-Tees 
Telephone No.  01642 526682 
Email Address:  jane.edmends@stockton.gov.uk 

Page 30



 

 1 
 
 
 
 
 

  

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

   AGENDA ITEM 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 
12 JUNE 2025 

 
REPORT OF CORPORATE  
MANAGEMENT TEAM 

 

CABINET DECISION  
 
Leader of the Council – Councillor Lisa Evans 
 
MINUTES OF VARIOUS BODIES 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The attached minutes are for consideration by Cabinet. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS/DECISIONS 
 
To enable Cabinet to view the minutes of various bodies. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the minutes of the meetings detailed in the appendices be received. 
 
DETAIL 
 
1. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution or previous practice the minutes of the meeting 

of the bodies indicated below are submitted to members for consideration:- 
 

SSP – 19 March 2025 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT IMPLICATIONS 
 
2. This report is not the subject of any Community Impact Implications. 
 
CORPORATE PARENTING IMPLICATIONS 
 
3. This report is not the subject of any Corporate Parenting Implications. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
4. Where applicable, as specified in the minutes. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5. Where applicable, as specified in the minutes. 
 
RISK ASSESSMENT   
 
6. This report is categorised as low to medium risk.  
 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

 2 
 
 
 
 
 

  

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 WARDS AFFECTED AND CONSULTATION WITH WARD/COUNCILLORS 
 
7.      Not applicable. 
 
 
Name of Contact Officer: Jonathan Nertney 
Post Title: Head of Democratic Services 
Email Address: jonathan.nertney@stockton.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Safer Stockton Partnership 

 
A meeting of Safer Stockton Partnership was held on Wednesday 19th March 2025. 
 
Present: Cllr Norma Stephenson (chair), Cllr Pauline Beall, Jen Moore, 

Adam Bateman, Andy Evans, Angela Corner, Marc 
Stephenson, Dawn Tyreman, Mandy Mackinnon, Mandie 
Rowlands, Kay Nicolson, Tracy Brittain. 

 
Officers: John Devine 
 
Also in attendance:   
 
Apologies:  John Wrintmore, Sharon Conney. 
 
 

SSP/60/24 Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true record.   
 

SSP/61/24 Recorded Crime and Disorder Report 
 
The Recorded Crime and Disorder Report was presented to Members in a new 
format, it had been changed to make the report easier to read and incorporate visual 
aids for the benefit of Members and the public. Members were asked to provide 
feedback to Officers on the new layout.  

Officers began by highlighting that publicly reported offences had decreased from the 
same time the year previously, as had Police generated crime. An increase of publicly 
reported Anti-Social behaviour had been noted, Offices were of the opinion that this 
increase was related to off road bikes which usually cause cases to spike leading up 
to the summer months.  

It was acknowledged that the increased numbers are earlier in the year then previous, 
but work was underway to tackle the issue. A number of bikes and quads had been 
seized by Police in the previous month, with help from the public on the location that 
the vehicles were stored and intel on the perpetrators.  

Members asked if the figures of total number of bikes seized could be provided to the 
Partnership, Officers agreed to bring a report back to a later meeting. Officers were 
thanks for the new layout of the report.  

Members AGREED to note the report. 

 
SSP/62/24 Update from Knife Crime Summit 

 
The Recorded Crime and Disorder Report was presented to Members in a new 
format, it had been changed to make the report easier to read and incorporate visual 
aids for the benefit of Members and the public. Members were asked to provide 
feedback to Officers on the new layout.  

Officers began by highlighting that publicly reported offences had decreased from the 
same time the year previously, as had Police generated crime. An increase of publicly 

Page 33



reported Anti-Social behaviour had been noted, Offices were of the opinion that this 
increase was related to off road bikes which usually cause cases to spike leading up 
to the summer months.  

It was acknowledged that the increased numbers are earlier in the year then previous, 
but work was underway to tackle the issue. A number of bikes and quads had been 
seized by Police in the previous month, with help from the public on the location that 
the vehicles were stored and intel on the perpetrators.  

Members asked if the figures of total number of bikes seized could be provided to the 
Partnership, Officers agreed to bring a report back to a later meeting. Officers were 
thanks for the new layout of the report.  

Members AGREED to note the report. 

 
SSP/63/24 Town Centre Partnership 

 
Officers informed members that the implementation of a seven-day footprint plan of 
patrols had begun, which would be done by two Officers. Joint patrols with partners 
would continue and local business in the town centre had already begun to give 
positive feedback. As touched on in the Recorded Crime and Disorder agenda item 
this positive feeling would lead to an improved perception of local crime levels.  

Members Agreed to note the report. 

 
SSP/64/24 Project Harmony/Shield Update 

 
The increased patrols which Officers had highlighted in the previous agenda item were 
directly connected with Projects Harmony & Shield. An increase in the joint working 
with Licensing Officers had also been undertaken alongside the increased patrols.  

Offices also informed members that members of the public were being encouraged to 
report crimes directly to the Police instead online.  

The ward Councillors for the areas covered by the projects discussed with Officers 
their experiences joining the partnership patrols, and the impact the pubic had felt 
from them. Councillors and Partners had also stated that they were committed to 
continuing regular walkthroughs.  

All partners were keenly aware of public perception of crime and the need to keep 
pushing key information to the public on the reductions in crime levels. This was also 
connected to the work being done on the urban park in Stockton and wanting to 
reassure the public that the park wouldn’t become a hot bed of anti-social behaviour 
when it opened. 

Members AGREED to note the report. 

 
SSP/65/24 Prevent (CT) Update 

 
Officers gave a brief update on the number of Prevent case currently underway in the 
Stockton area and noted that there had been an increase in the number of referrals. 

Page 34



Officers and Members thought that this could be due to the tv series Adolescents 
raising the public awareness and highlighting to the public the risks of radicalisation. 

Members agreed to note the update.   

 
SSP/66/24 iQuanta Report 

 
Members were presented with a restricted report that provided an overview on crime 
comparisons against other similar CSPs utilising iQuanta. 

This report was a restricted document due to the statistical information only made 
available as an intelligence tool for partnerships until released by the Home Office. 

AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
SSP/67/24 SBC Performance 

 
Due to the connection to an ongoing Police investigation this Agenda Item was 
restricted. 
 
 
 
Chair:  ..............................................................................................  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36


	Agenda
	1 Evacuation Procedure
	4 Minutes
	5 Bright Minds Big Futures
	6 A Children’s Safeguarding Hub for Stockton-on-Tees
	7 Accelerating affordable housing delivery ('A quality home for all')
	8 Minutes of Various Bodies
	Safer Stockton Partnership - 19 March 2025


